

12. Bibliography

This is just a small portion of the literature used in this study; each chapter includes a resource section including some resources not included here. A full bibliographic database with over 3,000 citations is available from the Victoria Transport Policy Institute (www.vtpi.org).

Frank Ackerman and Ian Finlayson (2006), “The Economics of Inaction on Climate Change: a Sensitivity Analysis”, *Climate Policy*, 6 (www.climatepolicy.com); at www.ase.tufts.edu/gdae/Pubs/rp/Sensitivity06.pdf.

Apogee Research, Inc (1994), *The Costs of Transportation* Conservation Law Foundation (www.clf.org).

Silvia Banfi, et al (2000), *External Costs of Transport; Accident, Environmental and Congestion Costs in Western Europe*, INFRAS (www.infras.ch) and IWW (www.iww.uni-karlsruhe.de).

Ian Bateman, R Kerry Turner, and Seeseana Bateman (1994), *Extending Cost Benefit Analysis of U.K. Highway Proposals: Environmental Evaluation and Equity*, CSERGE (www.uea.ac.uk/env/cserge).

Louis Berger & Associates (1998), *Guidance for Estimating the Indirect Effects of Proposed Transportation Projects*, Report 403, TRB (www.trb.org).

Eric Beshers (1994), *External Costs of Automobile Travel and Appropriate Policy Responses*, Highway Users Federation (www.highways.org).

Peter Bein (1997), *Monetization of Environmental Impacts of Roads*, Planning Services Branch, B.C. Ministry of Transportation and Highways (www.gov.bc.ca/tran); at www.geocities.com/davefergus/Transportation/0ExecutiveSummary.htm.

William Black, Dean Munn, Richard Black, and Jirong Xie (1996), *Modal Choices: An Approach to Comparing the Costs of Transportation Alternatives*, Transportation Research Center, Indiana University (www.research.indiana.edu/centers/trc.html).

Booz Allen Hamilton (2005), *Surface Transport Costs and Charges Study*, Ministry of Transportation New Zealand (www.transport.govt.nz).

Chris Bowers (1996), *The Real Costs of Motoring*, Environmental Transport (www.eta.co.uk).

David Bray and Peter Tisato (1998), “Broadening the Debate on Road Pricing,” *Road & Transport Research*, Vol. 7, No. 4, (www.arrb.com.au) Dec., pp. 34-45.

Robert Burchell, Anthony Downs, Barbara McCann and Sahan Mukherji (2005), *Sprawl Costs: Economic Impacts of Unchecked Development*, Island Press (www.islandpress.org).

Stephen Burrington (1994), *Road Kill; How Solo Driving Runs Down the Economy*, Conservation Law Foundation (www.clf.org).

Kenneth Button ed. (1994), *Internalizing the Social Costs of Transport*, OECD (www.oecd.org).

California Energy Commission (1994), *California Transportation Energy Analysis Report (Draft), 1993-1994*, California Energy Commission (www.energy.ca.gov).

Cambridge Systematics, Inc. (1994), *Highway Cost and Pricing Study*, Wisconsin Department of Transportation (www.dot.wisconsin.gov), Sept. 1994.

Michael Cameron (1994), *Efficiency and Fairness on the Road*, Environmental Defense Fund (www.edf.org).

CMHC (2006), *Tool For Costing Sustainable Community Planning*, Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca); at www.dcs.sala.ubc.ca/UPLOAD/RESOURCES/links/CMHC_CostingToolUserGuide.pdf.

Daniel Carlson, Lisa Wormser, and Cy Ulberg (1995), *At Road's End: Transportation and Land Use Choices for Communities*, Island Press (www.islandpress.org).

CTA (1998), *The Real Price of Gasoline; Analysis of the Hidden External Costs Consumers Pay to Fuel Their Automobiles*, Center for Technology Assessment (www.icta.org); at [www.icta.org/doc/Real Price of Gasoline.pdf](http://www.icta.org/doc/Real%20Price%20of%20Gasoline.pdf).

Clifford Cobb (1998), *The Roads Aren't Free; Estimating the Full Social Costs of Driving and the Effects of Accurate Pricing*, Redefining Progress (www.rprogress.org); at www.rprogress.org/publications/1998/wpts3_execsum.htm

Committee for Study of Public Policy for Surface Freight Transport (1996), *Paying Our Way; Estimating Marginal Social Costs of Freight Transport*, TRB (www.trb.org).

CUTR (2007), *Economics of Travel Demand Management: Comparative Cost Effectiveness and Public Investment*, Center for Urban Transportation Research (www.nctr.usf.edu); at www.nctr.usf.edu/pdf/77704.pdf

Elizabeth Deakin and Greig Harvey (1995), *Transportation Pricing Strategies for California: An Assessment of Congestion, Emissions, Energy and Equity Impacts*, California Air Resources Board (www.arb.ca.gov), Contract No. 92-316.

John DeCicco and Hugh Morris (1998), *The Costs of Transportation in Southeastern Wisconsin*, American Council for an Energy-Efficient Economy (www.aceee.org); at www.aceee.org/pubs/t982.htm

Mark Delucchi, et al. (1996 – 2007), *Annualized Social Cost of Motor Vehicle Use in the United States, Based on 1990-1991 Data*, Vol. 1-21, Institute of Transportation Studies (www.its.ucdavis.edu); at www.its.ucdavis.edu/people/faculty/delucchi/index.php

Mark Delucchi (1996), "Total Cost of Motor-Vehicle Use," *Access* (www.uctc.net), No. 8, Spring 1996, pp. 7-13; at www.uctc.net/access/access08.shtml

Mark Delucchi (2007), "Do Motor-Vehicle Users in the US Pay Their Way?," *Transportation Research Part A* (www.elsevier.com/locate/tra), Volume 41, Issue 10, Dec. 2007, pp. 982-1003.

S. Donovan, et al. (2008), *Managing Transport Challenges When Oil Prices Rise*, Research Report 357, New Zealand Transport Agency (www.ltsa.govt.nz); at www.ltsa.govt.nz/research/reports/357.pdf.

Anthony Downs (1992), *Stuck in Traffic; Coping with Peak-Hour Traffic Congestion*, Brookings Institute (www.brookings.edu).

DRI/McGraw-Hill (1994), *Transportation Sector Subsidies: U.S. Case Study*, USEPA, Office of Policy, Planning and Evaluation (www.epa.gov), November.

Ecorys Transport and Ce Delft (2005), *Infrastructure Expenditures and Costs: Practical Guidelines to Calculate Total Infrastructure Costs for Five Modes of Transport*, CE Delft (www.ce.nl) for the European Commission (www.ec.europa.eu); at http://ec.europa.eu/ten/transport/documentation/doc/2005_11_30_guidelines_infrastructure_report_en.pdf.

EDRG (2007), *Monetary Valuation of Hard-to-Quantify Transportation Impacts: Valuing Environmental, Health/Safety & Economic Development Impacts*, NCHRP 8-36-61, National Cooperative Highway Research Program (www.trb.org/nchrp); at www.statewideplanning.org/resources/63_NCHRP8-36-61.pdf.

EcoNorthwest and Parsons Brinckerhoff Quade & Douglas (1995), *Evaluation of Transportation Alternatives; Least Cost Planning: Principles, Applications and Issues*, FHWA (www.fhwa.dot.gov), Metropolitan Planning Technical Report #6, Sept. 1995.

EPA (1998), *Guidance on the Use of Market Mechanisms to Reduce Transportation Emissions*, USEPA (www.epa.gov).

European Environment Agency (2008), *Climate for a transport change*, (www.eea.europa.eu); at http://reports.eea.europa.eu/eea_report_2008_1/en/EEA_report_1_2008_TERM.PDF.

Reid Ewing (1995), "Measuring Transportation Performance," *Tran. Qrly*, Vol. 49, No.1 (www.enotrans.com), Winter.

FHWA (1997), *1997 Federal Highway Cost Allocation Study*, USDOT (www.fhwa.dot.gov); at www.fhwa.dot.gov/policy/hcas/summary/index.htm

FHWA (2007), *Growth in Highway Construction and Maintenance Costs*, Federal Highway Administration (www.fhwa.dot.gov); at www.oig.dot.gov/StreamFile?file=/data/pdfdocs/Growth_in_Highway_Construction_and_Maintenance_Costs_Final.pdf

Finra (1997), *Valuation of Impacts of Road Traffic Emission*, Finish National Road Administration, Finnra, (www.tiehallinto.fi), ISBN 951-726-323-6.

FRA (1993), *Environmental Externalities and Social Costs of Transportation Systems- Measuring, Mitigation & Costs*, Federal Railroad Administration (www.fra.dot.gov).

Lawrence Frank, Sarah Kavage and Todd Litman (2006), *Promoting Public Health Through Smart Growth: Building Healthier Communities Through Transportation And Land Use Policies*, Smart Growth BC (www.smartgrowth.bc.ca); at www.vtpi.org/sgbc_health.pdf.

Luc Gagnon (2006); *Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Transportation Options*, Hydro Quebec (www.hydroquebec.com); at www.hydroquebec.com/sustainable-development/documentation/pdf/options_energetiques/transport_en_2006.pdf.

Ross Garnault et al. (2008) *The Garnault Climate Change Review: Final Report*, Australian Department of Climate Change (www.climatechange.gov.au); at www.garnautreview.org.au.

Stephen Goddard (1994), *Getting There: The Epic Struggle Between Road and Rail in the American Century*, Basic Books.

Kenneth Green (1995), *Defending Automobility*, Reason Foundation (www.reason.org).

David Greene, Donald Jones and Mark Delucchi eds. (1997), *The Full Costs and Benefits of Transportation*, Springer (www.springer.com).

Susan Grant-Muller and James Laird (2007), *International Literature Review of the Costs of Road Traffic Congestion*, Scottish Executive (www.scotland.gov.uk); at www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2006/11/01103351/0.

Mark Hanson (1992), “Automobile Subsidies and Land Use: Estimates and Policy Review,” *Journal of the American Planning Association*, (www.planning.org), Winter.

Mark Hanson (1992), *The Nature and Magnitude of Social Costs of Urban Roadway Use; Literature Survey and Summary of Findings*, Federal Highway Administration (www.fhwa.dot.gov).

Stanley Hart and Alvin Spivak (1993), *The Elephant in the Bedroom; Automobile Dependency and Denial*, New Paradigm Books (Pasadena).

Quentin Heaney, Margaret O’Mahony, and Eithne Gibbons (1999), “External Costs Associated with Interregional Transport,” *Transportation Research Record 1659* (www.trb.org), pp. 79-86.

Jane Holtz Kay (1997), *Asphalt Nation*, Crown (New York).

L. Hyndman (Chair), (1992), *Directions: the Final Report of the Royal Commission on National Passenger Transportation*, Minister of Supply and Services Canada (www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca).

IBI Group (1995), *Full Cost Transportation and Cost-Based Pricing Strategies*, National Round Table on the Environment and Economy, Transportation and Climate Change Collaborative (www.nrtee-trnee.ca).

ICLEI (1997), *Uncovering Auto Subsidies: Calculating How Much Your Local Government Spends Subsidizing Cars*, Cities for Climate Protection, International Council for Local Environmental Initiatives (www.iclei.org).

IEA (2005), *Saving Oil in a Hurry*, International Energy Agency (www.iea.org); at www.iea.org/Textbase/publications/free_new_Desc.asp?PUBS_ID=1474.

Elmer Johnson, Project Director (1993), *Avoiding the Collision of Cities and Cars*, American Academy of Arts and Sciences (www.amacad.org).

IPCC (2007) *Climate Change 2007: Synthesis Report - Summary for Policymakers* (www.ipcc.ch); at www.ipcc.ch/pdf/assessment-report/ar4/syr/ar4_syr_spm.pdf.

- IPCC Working Group III (2007), *5 Transport and its Infrastructure* (www.ipcc.ch); at www.ipcc.ch/ipccreports/ar4-wg3.htm
- K.T. Analytics and Victoria Transport Policy Institute (1997), *Review of Cost of Driving Studies*, Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments (www.mwcog.org).
- Per Kageson (1994), *Getting the Prices Right: A European Scheme for Making Transport Pay Its True Costs*, European Federation for Transport and Environment (www.transportenvironment.org).
- Luke H. Klipp (2004), *The Real Costs Of San Francisco's Off-Street Residential Parking Requirements: An Analysis Of Parking's Impact On Housing Finance Ability And Affordability*, Transportation for a Livable City (www.livablecity.org); at www.livablecity.org/resources/Parking_Housing_Affordability_Final.pdf.
- KPMG (Van Seters, Levelton, Pammenter, Powell, Paul, Litman), (1993) *Cost of Transporting People in the British Columbia Lower Mainland*, Greater Vancouver Regional District (www.metrovancouver.org).
- KPMG (1996), *The Costs of Transporting People in the City of Edmonton*, City of Edmonton, (www.edmonton.ca).
- Richard Lake, et al. (1999), *Pricing and Climate Change; Phase 1: Needs Assessment*, Policy Group, Road Pricing, Transport Canada (www.tc.gc.ca).
- Land Transport New Zealand (2006 / 2005) *Economic Evaluation Manual (EEM) – volumes 1 & 2* (www.landtransport.govt.nz); at www.landtransport.govt.nz/funding/manuals.html.
- Felix Laube and Michael Lynch (1994), *Costs and Benefits of Motor Vehicle Traffic in Western Australia*, Inst. for Science and Technology Policy, Murdoch (www.istp.murdoch.edu.au).
- Douglass Lee (1995), *Full Cost Pricing of Highways*, National Transportation Systems Center (www.volpe.dot.gov).
- Todd Litman (1995), "Transportation Cost Analysis for Sustainability," *IATSS RESEARCH*, Vol. 19, No. 2, (www.iatss.or.jp), September.
- Todd Litman (1997), "Full Cost Accounting of Urban Transportation: Implications and Tools," *Cities*, Vol. 14, No. 3 (www.elsevier.com), June, pp. 169-174.
- Todd Litman (1997), "Policy Implications of Full Social Costing," *Transport at the Millennium; Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science*, Vol. 553 (<http://ann.sagepub.com/>), September, pp.143-156.
- Todd Litman (1998), "Transportation Cost Analysis; Applications in Developed and Developing Countries," *India Journal of Applied Economics*, Vol. 7, No. 1, Jan.-Mar. 1998, pp. 115-137.
- Todd Litman (2006), *Well Measured: Developing Indicators for Comprehensive and Sustainable Transport Planning*, VTPI (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/wellmeas.pdf.

Todd Litman (2006), *Evaluating Transportation Land Use Impacts*, VTPI (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/landuse.pdf.

Todd Litman (2006), *Transportation Elasticities: How Prices and Other Factors Affect Travel Behavior*, Victoria Transport Policy Institute (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/elasticities.pdf.

Todd Litman (2006), “Changing Travel Demand: Implications for Transport Planning,” *ITE Journal*, Vol. 76, No. 9, (www.ite.org), September 2006, pp. 27-33; at www.vtpi.org/future.pdf.

Todd Litman (2007), *Socially Optimal Transport Prices and Markets*, Victoria Transport Policy Institute (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/sotpm.pdf.

Todd Litman (2007), *Build for Comfort, Not Just Speed: Valuing Service Quality Impacts In Transport Planning*, Victoria Transport Policy Institute (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/quality.pdf.

Todd Litman (2008), *Parking Management: Strategies, Evaluation and Planning*, VTPI (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/park_man.pdf.

Todd Litman (2008), *Evaluating Accessibility for Transportation Planning*, Victoria Transport Policy Institute (www.vtpi.org); at www.vtpi.org/access.pdf.

Todd Litman, Charles Komanoff and Douglas Howell (1998), *Road Relief; Tax and Pricing Shifts for a Fairer, Cleaner, and Less Congested Transportation System in Washington State*, Energy Outreach Center/Climate Solutions (www.climatesolutions.org).

Gordon Lovegrove and Todd Litman (2008), *Macrolevel Collision Prediction Models to Evaluate Road Safety Effects of Mobility Management Strategies: New Empirical Tools to Promote Sustainable Development*, Transportation Research Board 87th Annual Meeting (www.trb.org); at www.vtpi.org/lovegrove_litman.pdf.

M. Maibach, et al. (2008), *Handbook on Estimation of External Cost in the Transport Sector*, CE Delft (www.ce.nl); at http://ec.europa.eu/transport/costs/handbook/doc/2008_01_15_handbook_external_cost_en.pdf

Virginia McConnell and Margaret Walls (2005). *The Value of Open Space: Evidence from Studies of Nonmarket Benefits*, Resources of the future (www.rff.org); at www.rff.org/rff/documents/rff-report-open%20spaces.pdf.

Paul Mees (2000), *A Very Public Solution: Transport in the Dispersed City*. Melbourne University Press (www.mup.com.au).

Donald Miller and Domenico Patassini (2005), *Beyond Benefit Cost Analysis: Accounting for Non-Market Values in Planning Evaluation*, Ashgate (www.ashgate.com).

Peter Miller and John Moffet (1993), *The Price of Mobility: Uncovering Hidden Costs of Transportation*, NRDC (www.nrdc.org).

James Murphy and Mark Delucchi (1998), “Review of the Literature on the Social Cost of Motor Vehicle Use in the United States,” *Journal of Transportation and Statistics*, Vol. 1, No. 1, Bureau of Transportation Statistics (www.bts.gov), Jan. 1998, pp. 15-42.

- Norman Myers (1998), *Perverse Subsidies; Tax \$s Undercutting Our Economies and Environments Alike*, International Institute for Sustainable Development (www.iisd.org).
- National Highway Institute (1995), *Estimating the Impacts of Urban Transportation Alternatives*, Federal Highway Administration (www.fhwa.dot.gov), #FHWA-HI-94-053.
- Peter Newman and Jeff Kenworthy (1998), *Sustainability and Cities; Overcoming Automobile Dependency*, Island Press (www.islandpress.org).
- OECD (2002), *Environmental Impacts of Transport Subsidies*, OECD Workshop on Environmentally Harmful Subsidies (www.oecd.org).
- Office of Technology Assessment (1994), *Saving Energy in U.S. Transportation*, Office of Technology Assessment (www.access.gpo.gov/ota).
- Margaret O'Mahony, Kieran Kirwan and Sean McGrath (1997), "Modeling the Internalization of External Costs of Transport," *Transport. Research Record 1576*, TRB (www.trb.org), pp. 93-98.
- Steven E. Polzin, Xuehao Chu and Vishaka Shiva Raman (2008), *Exploration of a Shift in Household Transportation Spending from Vehicles to Public Transportation*, Center for Urban Transportation Research (www.nctr.usf.edu); at www.nctr.usf.edu/pdf/77722.pdf.
- John Poorman (1995), *Estimating Marginal Monetary Costs of Travel in the Capital District*, Capital District Transportation Committee (www.cdtempo.org).
- Richard C. Porter (1999), *Economics at the Wheel; The Costs of Cars and Drivers*, Academic Press (www.academicpress.com).
- PSRC (1996), *The Costs of Transportation; Expenditures on Surface Transportation in the Central Puget Sound Region for 1995*, Puget Sound Regional Council (<http://psrc.org/>).
- John Quiggin (2006), *Stern and the critics on discounting*, University of Queensland (www.uq.edu.au); at <http://johnquiggin.com/wp-content/uploads/2006/12/sternreviewed06121.pdf>
- Cora Roelofs and Charles Komanoff (1994), *Subsidies for Traffic: How Taxpayer Dollars Underwrite Driving in New York State*, Tri-State Transportation Campaign, (New York).
- Gabriel Roth (1996), *Roads in a Market Economy*, Avebury (Aldershot).
- K. H. Schaeffer and Elliott Sclar (1980), *Access for All; Transportation and Urban Growth*, Columbia University Press (www.cup.columbia.edu).
- Donald Shoup (2005), *The High Cost of Free Parking*, Planners Press (www.planning.org).
- Kenneth Small, Clifford Winston and Carol Evans (1989), *Road Work*, Brookings Institute (www.brookings.edu).
- Sir Nicholas Stern et al.(2006), *Stern Review on the Economics of Climate Change*, UK Office of Climate Change (www.occ.gov.uk); at www.sternreview.org.uk.

Raymond Tellis, and C.Jotin Khisty (1997), “Social Cost Component of an Efficient Toll,” *Transportation Research Record 1576*, TRB (www.trb.org), pp. 140-146.

Transport and Environment Committee (1998), *Inquiry into the Environmental Effects of Road Transport*, New Zealand House of Representatives (www.parliament.nz).

Transport Concepts (1994), *External Costs of Truck and Train*, Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way Employees (www.bmwe.org).

Transportation and Climate Change Collaborative (1995), *A Strategy for Sustainable Transportation in Ontario*, National Round Table on the Environment and Economy (www.nrtee-trnee.ca).

Transport Canada (2003-2007), *The Full Cost Investigation of Transportation in Canada*, (www.tc.gc.ca); at www.tc.gc.ca/pol/en/aca/fci/menu.htm. For technical analysis see Anming Zhang, Anthony E. Boardman, David Gillen and W.G. Waters II (2005), *Towards Estimating the Social and Environmental Costs of Transportation in Canada*, Centre for Transportation Studies, University of British Columbia (www.sauder.ubc.ca/cts).

TRB (2002), *Identifying Environmental Research Needs In Transportation*, Transportation Research Board (www.trb.org).

Paul J. Tranter (2004), *Effective Speeds: Car Costs are Slowing Us Down*, University of New South Wales, for the Australian Greenhouse Office (www.climatechange.gov.au); at www.environment.gov.au/settlements/transport/publications/effectivespeeds.html.

David Urbanczyk and Jeanette Corlett (1995), *The Cost of Driving in the Chicago Metropolitan Region*, Chicago Metropolitan Planning Council (www.metroplanning.org).

H.P. van Essen, B.H. Boon, M. Maibach and C. Schreyer (2007), *Methodologies For External Cost Estimates And Internalization Scenarios: Discussion Paper For The Workshop On Internalisation On March 15, 2007*, CE Delft (www.ce.nl); at www.ce.nl/4288_Inputpaper.pdf.

Erik Verhoef (1994), “External Effects and Social Costs of Road Transport,” *Transportation Research*, Vol. 28A, No.4, (www.elsevier.com/locate/tra).

Sigurd Weinreich (1998), *The QUITs Study – Quality Indicators of Transport Systems; External Cost Analysis in the QUITs Project*, ZEW (www.zew.de/en).

Tay Wilson and Charlotte Neff (1983), *Social Dimension in Transportation Assessment*, Gower (www.ashgate.com).

Works Consultancy Services Ltd. (1993), *Land Transport Externalities*, Transit New Zealand (www.transit.govt.nz), Report #19.

Christopher Zegras, Dharm Guruswamy and Eric Miller (1994), *Urban Transportation, Land Use, Energy Consumption, and Air Quality: Implications for Modeling*, IIEC (www.iiec.org).

Christopher Zegras with Todd Litman (1997), *Analysis of the Full Costs and Impacts of Transportation in Santiago de Chile*, IIEC (www.iiec.org).

